

Shawano Youth League By-Laws

Article I. Purposes, Operation

Shawano Youth Baseball is an educational fun organization dedicated to developing better citizens by providing supervised baseball and softball competition for all who join. The primary emphasis for tournament team play shall be to play the best competition possible. All funds received by the organization shall be dedicated and invested solely for such purposes. The Board of Directors may establish guidelines for the acceptance of gifts and disbursement of funds by the organization in such a manner as may, in the judgment of the Board of Directors, be consistent with the purposes of the organization.

Article II. Offices

Section I. Principal Office. The principal office of the organization in the State of Wisconsin shall be located in the City of Shawano, County of Shawano. The organization may have such other offices, either within or outside of the State of Wisconsin, as the Board of Directors may designate from time to time.

Section II. Registered Office. The registered office of the organization required by the Wisconsin nonstock Corporation Law to be maintained in the State of Wisconsin may be, but need not be, identical with the principal office in the State of Wisconsin, and the address of the registered office may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Article III. Board of Directors

Section I. General Powers the affairs of the organization shall be managed by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall utilize and distribute the net earnings and principal funds of the organization solely in accordance with the purposes for which the organization was organized. The Board of Directors shall approve the Budget. Any amendment to the budget shall take a 2/3 majority of the Board to amend budget to reflect any changes. The Board of Directors shall appoint all committee chairs. The Board of Directors has the authority to make non-financial policy decisions as needed. The Board of Directors shall hear all appeals concerning selection and/or conflicts involving coaches.

All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued in the name of the organization, shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the organization and in such a manner as shall be determined by or under the authority of a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section II. Make-up, Manner of Election and Qualifications

The Board of Directors of the organization shall consist of:

President	
Vice President	Boys AA
Vice President	Boys AAA
Vice President	Girls AA
Vice President	Girls AAA
Vice President	Mix T-Ball (6-8)
Member at Large	Boys
Member at Large	Girls
Secretary	
Treasurer	

The membership shall vote and approve elected officers of the Board of Directors. Officers need to be residents of the State of Wisconsin.

Section III. Regular Meetings All Board of Directors meetings shall be scheduled by the President. The President may request the presence of individuals who are not members of the Board of Directors at board meetings, but such individuals shall not have a vote at such meetings.

Section IV. Special Meetings Special meetings of the Board may be called by or at the request of the President or any board member. The person calling such meeting may fix the time and place for holding any special meeting of the Board called by them.

Section V. Notice Notice of any special meeting shall be give at least forty-eight (48) hours previously thereto by oral or written notice delivered personally or mailed to each member of the Board at their last known address. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed delivered when deposited in the US mail so addressed with postage thereon paid. Whenever any notice whatever is required to be given to any member of the Board of the organization under the provisions of these by-laws or under the provisions of the articles of incorporation or under the provisions of any statute, a waiver thereof in writing, signed at any time, whether before or after the time of the meeting, by the Board member entitled to such notice, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

The attendance of a Board of Directors member at a meeting shall constitute a wavier of notice of such meeting except where a Board member attends a meeting and objects thereat to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the Board need be specified in the notice or wavier of notice of such meeting.

Section VI Quorum One-half (50%) of the members of the Board of Directors then

in office shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board, but though less than such quorum is present at a meeting a majority of the members of the Board present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

Section VII Manner of Acting The act of the majority of the Board of Directors members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present, shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by these by-laws or by law.

Section VIII Removal of Board member Any Board of Directors member may be removed from office, either with or without cause, the affirmative vote of a majority of Board members then in office taken at a special meeting of the members of the Board of Directors called for that purpose.

Section IX Vacancies Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors may be filled until the next succeeding annual election by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board members then in office, although less than a quorum of the Board may be present.

Section X Compensation Subject to the provisions of Article VI, Section 1, below, the Board of Directors, by affirmative vote of a majority of the Board members then in office, and irrespective of any personal interest of any of its members may establish reasonable compensation of all Board members for services rendered to the organization as Board members, officers or otherwise, or may delegate such authority to an appropriate committee

Section XI Presumption of Assent A Board of Directors member of the organization who is present at a meeting of the Board or a committee thereof at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless his dissent shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting or unless they shall file their written dissent to such action with the person acting as the secretary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof or shall forward such dissent by registered mail to the Secretary of the Organization immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply to a Board member who voted in favor of such action.

Section XII Informal Action Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors or any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth the action so taken shall be signed by all of the Board members or members of such committee.

Section I General Powers The membership shall elect and approve the officers of the Board of Directors and shall determine and approve regular league playing rules.

Section II Make up The membership shall consist of:

Board of Directors

Team Representation (one per team)

Section III Regular Meetings All membership meetings shall be scheduled by the President. The members may provide, by resolution, the time and place, either within or without the State of Wisconsin, for holding regular meetings without other notice than such resolution.

Section IV Special Meetings Special meetings of the membership may be called by or at the request of the President or any member. The person calling such meeting may fix any time or place for holding any special meeting of the members called by them.

Section V Notice Notice of any special meeting shall be given at least forty-eight (48) hours previously thereto by oral or written notice delivered personally or mailed to each member of the Membership at their last known address. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the U.S. Mail so addressed with postage thereon paid. Whenever any notice whatever is required to be given to any member of the Membership of the organization under the provisions of these by-laws or under the provisions of the articles of incorporation or under the provisions of any statute, a waiver thereof in writing, signed at any time, whether before or after the time of meeting, by the Membership member entitled to such notice, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

The attendance of a member of the Membership at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting except where a Membership member attends a meeting and objects thereto to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the Membership need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting.

Section VI Quorum A quarter (25%) of the Membership shall constitute a quorum

for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Membership, but though less than such quorum is present at a meeting a majority of the members of the Membership present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

Section VII Manner of Acting The act of the majority of the Membership members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present, shall be the act of the Membership, unless the act of a greater number is required by these by-laws or by law.

Section VIII Removal of Any member Any member may be removed from office or position, either with or without cause, the affirmative vote of a majority of the membership members then in office taken at a special meeting of the members of the membership called for that purpose.

Section IX Presumption of Assent A Membership member of the organization who is present at a meeting of the Membership or a committee thereof at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless his dissent shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting or unless they shall file their written dissent to such action with the person acting as the secretary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof or shall forward such dissent by registered mail to the Secretary of the Organization immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply to a Membership member who voted in favor of such action.

Section X Informal Action Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Membership or any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth the action so taken shall be signed by all of the members of the Membership or members of such committee.

Article IV Officers

Section I Principal Officers The principal officers of the organization shall be a President, one or more Vice-Presidents, a Secretary and a Treasurer, each of whom shall be elected by the Membership. Such other officers and assistant officers as may be deemed necessary may be elected or appointed by the Membership. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Secretary and President and Vice President.

Section II Election and Terms of Office The terms of each Board of Directors member shall be for One year. Elections will take place at the last Membership meeting at the conclusion of the organization's playing season. The newly elected officers shall be installed on the next business day after the election.

Section III Removal Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the Membership may be removed by the Membership whenever in its judgment the best interest of the organization will be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed. Election or appointment shall not itself create contract rights.

Section IV Vacancies A vacancy in any principal office because of death, resignation, removal, and disqualification or otherwise, shall be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

Section V President The President shall be the principal executive officer of the organization, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, shall in general supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the organization. He shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the Board. He shall, with the Vice Presidents, appoint coaches. He shall oversee all committees and appoint nomination committees. He may sign, with the Secretary or any other proper officer of the organization thereunto authorized by the Board, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which the Board has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board or by these by-laws or some other law to be otherwise signed or executed, and in general shall perform all duties incident to the office of the President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board from time to time.

Section VI Vice Presidents Boys and Girls In the absence of the President or in the event of the Presidents death or inability to act, the Vice-Presidents in the order determined by the Board shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President.

The Vice Presidents shall oversee all activities involving their respective but not limited to the following in their age groups, develop and distribute league schedules and league rules, keep league standings, and keep accurate record of umpires. The Vice Presidents shall, with the President, appoint coaches. The Vice Presidents shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board may from time to time prescribe.

Section VII Secretary The Secretary shall: a) keep any minutes of the Board meetings and general organizational meetings in one or more books provided for that purpose; b) see that all notices are duly given by law; c) be custodian of the corporate books and records of the organization; d) publicize league activities; e) maintain league records and rosters; f) organize registration and draft; and g) in general, perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him/her by the President or by the Board.

Section VIII Treasurer If required by the Board, the Treasurer shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of his/her duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties, as

the Board shall determine. The Treasurer shall: a) have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the organization; receive and give receipts for monies due and payable to the organization from any source whatsoever, and deposit all monies in the name of the organization in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of these by-laws; b) report the financial status of the organization at all league meetings; c) work with the budget/audit committee; d) develop the budget; and e) in general, perform all of the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him/her by the president or by the Board.

Section IX Member @ Large The Member at Large shall serve as the ombudsman between the coaches and the Board and shall represent the coaches.

Section X Salaries Officers and Board members shall ordinarily serve without compensation, but in unusual circumstances the Membership may approve the salaries or compensation for the officers or Board members which shall not be unreasonable for the services rendered by them to the organization.

Article V Committees

The following shall be the committees of the organization and their purposes:

Facilities/Diamonds

Reserve diamonds, maintain buildings and grounds associated with the organization, inventory and storage of field equipment

Equipment

Acquire, distribute, maintain, inventory and arrange for storage of all organization team equipment.

Umpires

Recruit, train and schedule all umpires, oversee ability and progress of umpires throughout the season.

Rules

Develop and distribute rules for each league, assist with training of umpires, train umpires and coaches about league rules.

Team Sponsors

Contact and solicit sponsors and fees for necessary number of teams Corporate/**Service**

Publicity/Registration/Draft

Publicize league activities, develop and direct player registration for each league, collect all registration fees, conduct draft and maintain rosters for each league, arrange for appropriate clinics.

Yearbook

Publish yearbook for each league, acquire advertisements for yearbook

Article VI

Section I Definitions Relating to Indemnification

For the purposes of this Article VI, the following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section:

1. "Board of Directors member or officer" shall mean any of the following:
 - A. A natural person who is or was an Board member or officer of the organization:
 - B. A natural person who, while an Board member or officer of the organization, is or was serving at the organization's request as an Board member, officer, partner, trustee, member of any governing or decision-making committee, employee or agent of another corporation or foreign corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise:
 - C. A natural person who, while an Board member or officer of the organization, is or was serving an employee benefit plan because his/her duties to the organization also imposed duties on, or otherwise involved services by, the person to the plan or to participants in or beneficiaries of the plan:
 - D. unless the context requires otherwise, the estate or personal representative of a Board member or officer.
2. "Expenses" shall include fees, costs, charges, and disbursements, attorney fees and any other expenses incurred in connection with a proceeding.
3. "Liability" shall include the obligation to pay a judgment, settlement, penalty, assessment, forfeiture or fine, including any excise tax assessed with respect to an employee benefit plan, and reasonable expenses.
4. "Party" shall mean a natural person who was or is, or who is threatened to be made, a named defendant or respondent in a proceeding.
5. "Proceeding" shall mean any threatened, pending, completed civil, criminal, administrative or investigative action, suit, arbitration or other proceeding, whether formal or informal, which involves foreign, federal, state or local law and which is brought by or in the right of the organization or by any other person.

Section II Mandatory Indemnification

1. The organization shall indemnify a Board member or officer, to the extent he/she has been successful on the merits or otherwise in the defense of a proceeding, for all reasonable expenses incurred in the proceeding if the Board member or officer was a party because he/she is an Board member or officer of the organization.
2. In cases not included under subparagraph (a), above, the organization shall indemnify a Board member or officer against liability incurred by the Board member or officer in a proceeding to which the Board member or officer was a party because he/she is a Board member or officer of the

organization, and the breach or failure to perform constitutes any of the following:

- A. A willful failure to deal fairly with the organization or its members in connection with a matter in which the Board member or officer has a material conflict of interest.
- B. A violation of criminal law, unless the Board member or officer has reasonable cause to believe his/her conduct was lawful or no reasonable cause to believe his/her conduct was unlawful.
- C. A transaction from which the Board member or officer derived an improper personal profit.
- D. Willful misconduct

Determination of whether indemnification is required under this subparagraph shall be made under provisions of Section 3 hereof. The termination of a proceeding by judgment, order, settlement or conviction or upon a plea of no contest or an equivalent plea shall not, by itself, create a presumption that indemnification of the Board member or officer is not required under this subparagraph.

3. A Board member or officer who seeks indemnification under this section shall make a written request to the organization.
4. Indemnification under this section is not required if the Board member or officer has previously received indemnification or allowance of expenses from any person, including the organization, in connection with the same proceeding.

Section III Determination of Right to Indemnification

Unless provided otherwise by written agreement between the Executive Board member or officer and the organization, the Board member or officer seeking indemnification under subparagraph (b) of Section II hereof, shall select one of the following means for determining his/her right to indemnification:

1. By majority vote of a quorum of the Board consisting of Board members not at the time parties to the same or related proceedings. If a quorum of disinterested Board members cannot be obtained, by majority vote of a committee duly appointed by the Board and consisting solely of two or more Board members not at the time parties to the same or related proceedings. Board members who are parties to the same or related proceedings may participate in the designation of members of the committee.
2. By independent legal counsel selected by a quorum of the Board member or its committee in the manner prescribed in subparagraph (a) or, if unable to obtain such a quorum or committee, by a majority vote of the full Board, including Board members who are parties to the same or related proceedings.
3. By a panel of three arbitrators consisting of one arbitrator selected by those Board members entitled under subparagraph (b) to select independent legal counsel, one arbitrator selected by the Board member or officer seeking

indemnification, and one arbitrator selected by the two arbitrators previously selected.

4. By a court as provided in Section VI hereof.
5. By any other method provided for an additional right to indemnification permitted under Section V hereof.

Section IV Allowance of Expenses as Incurred

Upon written request by a Board member or officer who is a party to a proceeding, the organization may pay or reimburse his/her reasonable expenses as incurred if the Board member or officer provides the organization with all of the following:

1. A written affirmation of his/her good faith belief that he/she has not breached or failed to perform his/her duties to the organization.
2. A written undertaking, executed personally or on his/her behalf, to repay the allowance and, if required by the organization, to pay reasonable interest on the allowance to the extent that it is ultimately determined under Section III hereof that indemnification under Section II hereof is not required and that indemnification is not ordered by a court under Section VI hereof. The undertaking under this subparagraph shall be an unlimited general obligation of the Board member or officer and may be accepted without reference to his/her ability to repay the allowance. The undertaking may be secured or unsecured.

Section V Additional Rights to Indemnification and Allowance of Expenses

Except as provided in this Section V, the provisions of Section II and Section IV hereof do not preclude any additional right to indemnification or allowance of expenses that Board member or officer may have under any of the following:

1. The written agreement between the Board member or officer and the organization: or
2. A resolution of the Board;

Regardless of the existent of an additional right to indemnification or allowance of expenses, the organization shall not indemnify a Board member or officer or permit an Board member or officer to retain any allowance of expenses unless it is determined by or on behalf of the organization that the Board member or officer did not breach or fail to perform a duty he/she owes to the organization which constitutes conduct under Section II (b) (I) - (iv). A Board member or officer who is party to the same or related proceedings for which indemnification or an allowance of expenses is sought may not participate in a determination under this subparagraph. None of the provisions contained in this Article V shall affect the organization's power to pay or reimburse expenses incurred by a Board member or officer in any of the following circumstances:

1. As a witness in a proceeding to which he/she is not a party
2. As a plaintiff or petitioner in a proceeding because he/she is or was an employee, agent, Board member or officer of the organization

Section VI Court Ordered Indemnification Except as provided otherwise by written agreement between the Board member or officer and the organization, a Board member or officer who is party to a proceeding may apply for indemnification to the court conducting the proceeding or to another court of competent jurisdiction. Application shall be made for an initial determination by the court under the provisions of Section III (d) or for review by the court of an adverse determination under Section III (a), (b), (c) or (e).

Section VII Contract The assumption by a person of a term of office as a Board member or officer of the organization or, at the request of the organization, as a Board member or officer of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, and the continuance in office or service of those persons who are any such Board members or officers as of the adoption of this Article, shall constitute a contract between such person and the organization entitling him/her during such term of office or service to all of the rights and privileges of indemnification afforded by this Article as in effect as of the date of his/her assumption or continuance in such term of office or service, but such contract shall not prevent, and shall be subject to modification by, amendment of this Article at any time prior to receipt by the organization of actual notice of a claim giving rise to any person's entitlement to indemnification hereunder.

Section VIII Insurance The organization shall have power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a Board member or officer of the organization, or is serving at the request of the organization as a Board member or officer of another organization, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against him/her and incurred by him/her in any such capacity or arising out of his/her status as such, whether or not the organization would have the power to indemnify him/her against such liability under the provisions of this Article or Chapter 181 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

Section IX Self-Dealing Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article to the contrary, no person shall be entitled to indemnification hereunder if such indemnification or the payment by the organization of any monies in connection therewith constitutes, or would constitute, an act of "self-dealing" within the meaning of Section 4941 of the internal Revenue Code of 1987 or any successor provision thereto. The organization shall have the right to rely on a written opinion of independent legal counsel with respect to any determination of "self-dealing" hereunder which shall be binding and conclusive unless a contrary determination shall be made in any administrative or court proceeding and the time for appeal by either party to such proceeding shall have expired. If the organization shall have made any payment under this Article prior to a determination that such payment constitutes an act of "self-dealing" the person to whom or for whose benefit such payment constituted an act of "self-dealing." Nothing herein shall be construed as placing upon the organization any obligation to contest by court or administrative proceedings, or otherwise, any assertion that any indemnification or payment pursuant to this Article constitutes an act of self-dealing.

Section X Effect of Invalidity

The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Article shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Article or of these by-laws.

Article VII Miscellaneous

Section I Internal Revenue Code

Notwithstanding anything herein contained to the contrary, no action shall be required or permitted to be taken under these by-laws or by the Board members or officers of this organization which would not be permitted to be taken by an organization described in Section 501 © (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or which would result in the imposition of federal tax under Sections 4941 through 4945, inclusive, of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended

Section II Team Managers Team managers will be selected by the Vice-President of the respective leagues and President and approved by the Board. Priority will be given to returning managers if space is available.

Section III Draft All teams in all AA and AAA leagues will participate in a drafting of players. The President and Vice-President of the T-Ball league will assign t-Ball players teams. Tryouts will be held on such a date selected by the Board of Directors and each team will draft according to last year's standings. If teams are tied for a spot a coin flip will prevail.

Section IV Parliamentary Authority "Robert Rules of Order" shall be the parliamentary authority on all matters not covered by the by-laws of the organization.

Section V Amendments The membership may from time to time at any regular or special meeting, by a vote of the majority, adopt, amend or repeal any or all or these by-laws. The Secretary of the Organization shall mail written notice of any proposed amendments to all individuals constituting the membership of the Organization at least five (5) days prior to the meeting.

Article VIII - Registration and Draft

Section I Registration Times There shall be a sign up for all ages of the Shawano Youth League the first Tuesday evening in March of each year at 6:00 pm - 7:00 pm with a short presentation to follow after 7:00 pm to all parents/children involved in the program. All parents will be expected to attend. The Board of Directors will establish league fees each year.

Section II Skills Day There shall be an organized skills day to be held on the third

Saturday in April unless changed by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. All children new to the League are expected to attend. Following the skills portion all children will be placed on a team.

Section III Draft The draft will be held following skills completion on the same day as the Skills day is. It is MANDATORY that ALL HEAD COACHES are in attendance. Here is the procedure for drafting players.

1. Teams will be notified of their draft position (set by finish in previous season)
2. Teams will be evaluated as to what ages that still remain on their current team.
3. ONLY children who are in attendance at Skills day can be selected in the draft. Any child not attending skills day will have their name drawn from a hat following regular draft of players in attendance.
4. Teams will begin draft as to equalize age groups.
---Teams need to start with same number of each age group. The team that is down in a certain age will get the first pick in such age to even things out. After even ages are achieved then the team that finished last in previous year will start the draft.
5. Any freezes are automatic second round picks of the selecting team. There can ONLY be freezes for a Head Coaches child. NO EXCEPTIONS.
6. Any sibling playing in the same league is automatically put on sibling's team.
7. The draft will conclude when ALL children are selected.
8. All coaches will notify the President and Vice President of their respective league the selections that were made for the draft immediately following the draft.
9. Any late sign-ups will be placed on a team at the discretion of the League President in conjunction with the appropriate Vice President.

Article IX Tournament

Section I Tournaments Shawano Youth League shall host tourneys for each respective league every year. Tournament entry fee and make-up of tourney is subject to change by the Board of Directors and will be voted upon each year.

Section II Travel Shawano Youth League Board of Directors has an option to place an amount of money into each tournament teams budget to be used at such teams discretion for the purpose of entry fees and other expenses incurred while at tournaments. Each team is responsible to make use of their budget to further advance respective team along. Any expenditure outside of the budget will need 2/3 approval of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors will determine amount of money.

Section III Team Selection The procedure for selection of tournament teams players will be the same among all leagues. Here is the procedure:

1. At such time the Head Coaches from any league are ready to make tournament team

- selections they are to contact the League President.
2. The League President will then contact each coach and ask for nominations of the players and coaches. There will be no limit to nominations. ALL nominations need to be given to the League President.
 3. After nominations are received the League President will make up a voting ballot to distribute to coaches. Coaches will select 11 players and 1 coach pick. Voting ballots are then turned into the League President for tally. League President will then contact selected Head coach within 24 hours of tally. Head Coach is allowed to select 1 additional player to fill roster to 12 players. Head coach will also select 2 assistant coaches.
 4. All teams will be filled by highest vote getters. (Exception: A team coach selects a child who got fewer votes to fill 12 th spot) Coaches for teams other than the A team will be selected by League President from the coaches nomination list and number of votes. If a child chooses to not play on a particular traveling and/or tournament team for any reason, the player is no longer considered for any traveling or tournament team. The players must play for the teams they were voted onto.

Article X Dissolution of League

Upon the dissolution of this organization, assets shall be distributed for one or more except purposes within the meaning of section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or shall be distributed to the federal government, or to a state or local government, for a public purpose.

